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Summary Cal endar

UNI TED STATES OF AMERI CA
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Appeal fromthe United States District Court
for the Southern District of Texas
USDC No. L-00-CR-417-1

May 31, 2001
Bef ore KING Chief Judge, and JONES and STEWART, Circuit Judges.
PER CURI AM *
Def endant - Appel | ant Magdal eno Lopez- Qui ntero appeals his

conviction under 8 U.S.C. 8§ 1326. For the foll ow ng reasons, we

AFFI RM

"Pursuant to 5THCGR R 47.5, the court has determ ned that
this opi nion should not be published and is not precedent except
under the limted circunstances set forth in 5THCQR R 47.5. 4.



|. FACTUAL AND PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND

On March 28, 2000, Defendant-Appell ant Magdal eno! Lopez-
Quintero, a citizen of Honduras, was apprehended (along with two
ot her undocunented aliens) by U S. Border Patrol agents in
Laredo, Texas. Lopez-Quintero, who has a history of crimnal
convictions and deportations, admtted to illegally entering the
United States by wading across the Ro G ande River near Laredo.
On April 18, 2000, Lopez-Quintero was charged in a one-count
indictment with being present in the United States as a
previously deported alien. See 8 U . S.C. § 1326.°2

On May 8, 2000, Lopez-Quintero filed a notion to dism ss the

. Throughout the record, Lopez-Quintero’'s first nanme
appears with two different spellings, i.e., as “Mgdal eno” and
“Magdel eno.” As both he and the Court of Appeals for the Fifth
Circuit docket sheet utilize the former spelling, we will also do
so in this opinion (except when quoting docunents containing the
|atter spelling).

2 Section 1326 states in relevant part:

(a) I'n general
Subj ect to subsection (b) of this section, any alien
who—

(1) has been deni ed adm ssi on, excluded,
deported, or renoved or has departed the United States
whi |l e an order of exclusion, deportation, or renoval is
out st andi ng, and thereafter

(2) enters, attenpts to enter, or is at any tine
found in, the United States, unless (A) . . . the
Attorney General has expressly consented to such
alien’ s reapplying for adm ssion; or (B) . . . such
alien shall establish that he was not required to
obtai n such advance consent . . ., shall be fined under
Title 18, or inprisoned not nore than 2 years, or both.

8 U.S.C. § 1326 (1999).



indictrment,® arguing that it did not allege any act or intent on
his part. The district court denied this notion on May 22, 2000,
and the next day, Lopez-Quintero pled guilty to the indictnent.
The district court subsequently sentenced himto seventy nonths
in prison and three years of supervised rel ease.

Lopez-Quintero tinely appeals.

1. STANDARD OF REVI EW
We review challenges to the sufficiency of the indictnent,
whi ch have been preserved by being raised in the district court,

under a de novo standard of review See United States v. Guznman-

Ccanpo, 236 F.3d 233, 236 (5th Cr. 2000); United States v.

Asi bor, 109 F.3d 1023, 1037 (5th Cr. 1997). Furthernore,

3 The indi ctnment agai nst Lopez-Quintero states:
THE GRAND JURY CHARGES THAT:

On or about March 28, 2000, in the Southern
District of Texas and within the jurisdiction of the
Court, Defendant,

MAGDELENO LOPEZ- QUI NTERG,

an alien who had previously been deni ed adm ssi on,

excl uded, deported, or renpbved, or has departed the
United States while an order of exclusion, deportation
or renoval is outstanding, and having not obtained the
consent of the Attorney Ceneral of the United States
for reapplication by the Defendant for adm ssion into
the United States, was thereafter found in the United
St at es.

In violation of Title 8, United States Code, Section
1326.



“[ bl ecause an indictnent is jurisdictional, . . . the defect is

not waived by a guilty plea.” United States v. Cabrera-Teran,

168 F.3d 141, 143 (5th GCr. 1999) (internal quotations and

citations omtted); see also United States v. Marshall, 910 F. 2d

1241, 1243 (5th G r. 1990).°

[11. SUFFI CI ENCY OF THE | NDI CTMENT
In essence, Lopez-Quintero argues that the indictnent
violates the Fifth and Si xth Amendnents to the U S. Constitution
because it does not allege any intent on his part.> W recently

considered this very issue. See United States v. Berrios-

Cent eno, No. 00-20373, --- F.3d ---- (5th Gr. April 27, 2001).

We first held that 8 1326 is a general intent offense (and not a

4 Therefore, the governnent’s argunent, that Lopez-
Quintero waived his challenges to the indictnment because he
entered an unconditional guilty plea, is without nerit. United
States v. Bell, 966 F.2d 914 (5th Cr. 1992), on which the
governnent relies, is not to the contrary. Bell held that an
unconditional guilty plea waives all non-jurisdictional defects.
See 1d. at 915.

5 Lopez-Quintero al so raises an issue regarding his
sent ence enhancenent, which he received as a result of a prior
fel ony conviction. He argues that prior felony convictions are
el ements of the offense under 8 U.S.C. § 1326, as opposed to nere
sent enci ng enhancenents. He recogni zes that this issue has been
resol ved agai nst himby Al nendarez-Torres v. United States, 523
U S 224 (1998). See United States v. Dabeit, 231 F.3d 979, 984
(5th Gr. 2000) (stating, in a case regarding the very chall enge
that Lopez-Quintero asserts here, that |lower courts are conpelled
to follow directly controlling Supreme Court precedent “‘unless
and until’” the Court speaks to the contrary (citations
omtted)), cert. denied, 121 S. C. 1214 (2001). Lopez-Quintero
raises this issue in order to preserve it for further review by
the Suprene Court.




strict liability offense, as advocated by the governnent). See
id., manuscript at 6-8. W also held that Berrios-Centeno’ s
indictnment sufficiently alleged the requisite general intent as
it fairly conveyed that the defendant’s presence in the United
States was a voluntary act. See id., manuscript at 9-12. The
indictment in the instant case is alnost identical to the

i ndictnent found sufficient in Berrios-Centeno. For the reasons

stated in Berrios-Centeno, we conclude that Lopez-Quintero’s

indictnment sufficiently alleged the general intent nens rea

required of 8 1326 of fenses.

V. CONCLUSI ON
For the foregoing reasons, the conviction of Magdal eno

Lopez- Quintero i s AFFI RVED.



